
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Peterborough, New Hampshire 

 
CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD 

OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
 Peterborough, New Hampshire 

 
CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD  

Tuesday, May 27, 2008 
 

Francestown Elementary School 
7 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 
BOARD       ADMINISTRATION 
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon,    Richard Bergeron, Supt. 
Ray Cote, Gail Cromwell,     Don Johnson, Asst. Supt. 
Bart Goodeve, Dan Harper,    Marian Alese, B.A. 
Craig Hicks, Lauren Kirkpatrick,     Tim Markley, H.R. 
Arthur Knight, Mary Loftis,      Sue Copley, PES 
Tom Welden       Sue Dell, CVHS 
        Richard Dunning, SMS 
Beth San Martino, CVEA     Deb Lesure, AES 
        MaryEllen Stanley, FES 
        Gib West, GBS 
        Jeanie West, SMS 

 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance 
was recited.   
  
Tom said that he is proud to be here at FES tonight. 
 
MaryEllen Stanley, FES Principal, welcomed everyone to Francestown to see some of 
the work that the students have done.  She introduced FES staff to the Board.   
Ms.Stanley said that the presentation tonight is science related.  She explained the work 
that the Harris Center does at FES.  They provide programming that aligns with the 
State GLE’s.  Student presenters are present tonight to share their work.  FES staff and 
Harris Center staff are present tonight to answer any questions.   
 
Tom said that Stewart Brock is not present tonight so that he could attend an award 
ceremony at CVHS for his daughter.   
 
An opportunity was provided for Board, staff, and visitors to visit the various student 
displays.  The meeting reconvened at 7:25 p.m. 
 
Tom thanked FES for the work that they shared tonight.  IT was evident that the 
students learned a lot from what they taught. 
 



 

 
2.  Minutes (Board Vote Required) 
 a.  May 13, 2008 
Arthur Knight moved to accept the minutes of the May 13, 2008 meeting.  Dan 
Harper second.  Bart Goodeve abstained. 
 
3.  Public Comment 
None 
 
4.  Consent Agenda 

a.  Technology Committee Commendation Letter 
Dick Bergeron referenced a letter in tonight’s packet to recognize all that we are proud 
of in the ATC.  He said that HP will offer a printer network analysis to breakdown 
servicing, costs, etc.  This tool is free of charge.   

 
5.  Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business 

a.  Field Trip Proposal (Board Vote Required)  
1.  ConVal High School French class will travel to Paris to be immersed in 

the language and culture in April 2009 
Dick Bergeron referenced the proposal as outlined. 
Craig Hicks moved to allow CVHS students to travel to France in April of 2009.  
Arthur Knight second.     
Ray Cote asked about the statement at the top of page ten that says that students will 
stay in a different town than the teacher.  He asked why.  
The Board declined to vote on this until more information was provided. 
Arthur Knight and Craig Hicks withdrew their motion.   

 
b.  Personnel 

Transfer  
PES 
Janice LaRoche  .6 FTE - Kindergarten to   1 FTE - 3rd grade teacher 
Lori Groleau  1 FTE – 3rd grade to 1 FTE – 2nd grade 

Tim Markley explained the transfers above. 
 
SMS 
Bruce Fox   1 FTE 7th grade – to FTE 8th grade 
Peggy VanValkenburgh  1 FTE – 8th grade to 1FTE – 7th grade  

Tim Markley explained the transfers above.   
   
Resignation  
CVHS  Tracy Encarnacao  Guidance 
CVES  Johanna Kress  Physical Education 
GBS  Heather Saucier  Alternative Education  
SMS  Michelle Hannon  6th Grade 
   Emily Spring   6th Grade 
 

Tim read the resignations listed above.   
 
 



 

Mary Loftis moved to accept the transfers and resignations as read.  Dan Harper 
second.  Unanimous. 

  
Co-Curricular/Athletics  
 
Resignation 
CVHS  Heather Saucier  Boys Basketball 
SMS  Mary Bush   NH Dance Institute 
 
Co-Curricular Nomination  
SMS  Emily Spring  Destination Imagination 
 

Arthur Knight moved to accept the Co-Curricular resignations and nominations 
as read.  Dan Harper second.  Unanimous.   

 
c.  Literacy Coaches (HILL) 

Don Johnson referenced the Literacy Coach information in tonight’s packet and cited a 
correction that should read K-5 and not that of all ages.  We are currently going through 
Phase I of data gathering.  On-site embedded Professional Development will be in 
place.  Literacy coaches will work K-5 in the elementary schools, working with the 
classroom teachers providing support.  We are hoping to hire these positions before the 
end of June.  Two positions will be hired for.  Both are grant funded.  They are 
contracted service positions and will be level funded.   
 
Ray Cote asked if a goal was in place as to how we will know if this is working.  Don 
said that one thing that will happen is that the data will be presented.  It is called the 
School Literacy Program.  With the help of the HILL consultants, a plan will be 
developed.  The accomplishment of those goals will be the prime measure of success.   
Gail Cromwell asked if the Literacy Coach program coordinated with our Mentor 
program.  Don confirmed that the two will work very tightly together.     

 
d.  AES/PES Kindergarten Positions 

Dick said that a transfer in position from PES to AES is expected to help meet the actual 
kindergarten registrations.  (See attachment #1)   He said that adjustments are being 
made for what we need to have in place.   
Mary Allen said that she is glad that we are doing this.  She asked if there was anything 
that we could do to project what the numbers might be.  She wondered how this might 
be coordinated better.  Dick said that in the past he has used mailings to determine 
enrollment.  He would love to tighten these projections in the future. 

 
e.  AES/GBS Nurse 

Dick Bergeron said that an adjustment in staffing by adding one nursing position at AES 
is in order. 
Craig Hicks moved to add one nursing position at AES/GBS.  Mary Allen second.  
Tom Welden said that changes have occurred to warrant this.     
Gail Cromwell asked how we were going to pay for this.  Dick said that once everything 
is settled we will look at the plusses and minuses of everything.  The needs are such  
 
 
 



 

that there is no question.  How to pay for it is his obligation.  Craig asked if this was 
special education driven.  Mary Allen asked what has changed.  She asked if these 
were new students that have come into the school.  Dick said that students have come 
in  with health needs as well as significant changes in current students that have 
occurred since the budget process took place.  Tom Welden said that people come in 
and out of the district and we have to base decisions upon where we are at a specific 
point in time.  Gail asked how this is known.  How do we find out about these issues?  
Dick said that he has a medical report from every school detailing the time that our 
nurses spend with our students and the full medical readout from every school.   
Unanimous.   

 
f.  Monthly Events Calendar (May/June) 

Included in tonight’s packet. 
Beverly Bacon added an Education subcommittee meeting on June 2, 2008.   

 
6.  Old Business 
Mary Loftis reported the following items of interest from the last Communications 
Committee meeting:   
AYP Reporting: 
Crisis Communication Plan: 
Mid-Year Report:   
Meet & Greets: 
GBS/AES Update: 
 
Tom said that this will be sent out electronically to all Board members and be brought 
back to the Board at the next general meeting on June 24th.  Craig suggested that we 
address the hiring process for GBS/AES at the next meeting being held at AES.   
 
Tom said that in terms of communication, we have been receiving the Legislative 
Updates regularly.  The House version is what Anne-Marie Irwin is fighting for.  The 
Senate version is very detrimental to the employer.  He suggested that we contact our 
legislators to show support of the House version.  The Evergreen provisions will go on 
to Governor Lynch for his approval.  He asked that we contact the Governor to show 
dissatisfaction of the provision.   
 
Craig said that the Architect has been down several times to meet.  We are looking at 
everything.  The bleachers are complete.  Craig said that we are looking at how the high 
school campus can grow.  We are looking at the plan on a long term basis.   
Tom thanked Craig for all of the time he has spent with the architect. 
 
Gail Cromwell distributed an article about the effect of gender on a student’s education 
(See attachment #2).  This article addresses how gender affects the level of a student’s 
education.  Tom thanked Gail for the information.   
 
The summer schedule for the Board will be set at the June 10, 2008 Board meeting.   
 
 
 
 
7.  New Business  



 

 a.  Policy First Reading 
  1.  IF – Instructional Programs 
  2.  IFA – Instructional needs of Students with Different Talents 
  3.  IHAK – Character and Citizenship Education 
  4.  IHBBA – Limited English Proficiency Instruction 
  5.  IHCA – Summer Activities 
  6.  IJ – Instructional Materials 
  7.  IJO – School, Community, and Home Relations 
 
Don referenced the next batch of policies being brought forward for the first read.  In the 
packet tonight, policy IF is included.  These policies are brought forward as model 
policies from the NHSBA.  Don referenced each of the policies listed above.   
He said that he would like to make one additional change to IHBBA – item 3, he would 
strike the first sentence and start with NH’s only English state.  It would now read “As 
designated by legislation, New Hampshire is an English only state.”  
Bart asked what item #2 meant.  Don said that the state requires all ESL students to 
take the math assessment.  It was recommended from the district ESL teacher.   
Don said that this is talking about the state requirements and it states that students who 
have been educated in the United States for one year have to participate in the 
assessments.  It addresses our assessments and not an English assessment.   
Tom Welden suggested that a distinguishing line be placed in here to further explain 
what the intent is.  Clarification is needed.  Don confirmed that he would do so.  Bart 
requested a footnote explaining that the State has identified NH as an English only 
state.   
Ray Cote asked on pg. 33 in the IHAK policy.  Numbers three, five, six, seven, should 
include the same verbage in all of the items.  Take out the enumerations as to who has 
the right to equal opportunity by stating that everyone has the right to equal opportunity.   
 
Gail said that as a practical matter, we have had discrimination on some of these 
matters.  She asked if there is anything we have left out.  Many possibilities were cited.   
 
IJ – Bart asked if the change made was sent to the NHSBA.  Don confirmed that it was.  
He suggested a change be made in the second sentence to read “Since the Board is a 
policy-making body, it may delegate to the Superintendent, or his/her designee, the 
authority…. below.” 
 
Tom said that these will be on the table for at least thirty days.  Any comments should 
be addressed to Don Johnson.   
 
8.  Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required) 
Marian certified that manifests 132 – 135 totaling $232,166.35 and Payroll 22 – 24 
totaling $3,597,616.78 have been reviewed by me and found to be proper charges 
against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or services received and 
have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Craig Hicks moved to accept the manifests as read.  Arthur Knight second.  
Unanimous. 
 
  
9.  Non-Public Session:  RSA 91-A:3,IIc 
 a.  Personnel 

1.  Negotiations 
 

Dan Harper moved in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,IIc for matters of negotiation at  
8:13 p.m.  Unanimous on a roll call vote.   
 
Dan Harper moved to seal the minutes of non-public session at 9:09 p.m.  Mary 
Loftis second.  Unanimous.   
 
Arthur Knight moved to adjourn at 9:09 p.m.  Craig Hicks second.  Unanimous. 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Brenda Marschok 


